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EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 
COMMISSION, 

) 
) 

) 
Plaintifl~ ) CIV 04-1 IIS.lPlD.lS 

) 
v. ) 

) . FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT 
DHL Express (USA), Inc .. f/k/a Airborne Express. Inc.,) 
and Air One Transport Group, Inc .. d/h/a ) 
Air One Transport of New Mexico, L.L.c. ) 

) 
) 

Defendants. ) 

----------------------------) 

JURY TRIAL DF:MANDED 

Comes now, Plainti ff, the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission and pursuant to Rule 

15(a) of the federal Rules of Civil Procedure and hereby amends its Complaint filed on September 

29.2004 to include as a Defendant, DHL Express (USA), Inc .. a Delaware Corporation which has 

merged its business operations with Defendant Airborne Express. Inc. 

:'tIATURE OF THE ACTION 

This is an action under Title Vll of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, a~ amcnded and Title I of 

the Civil Rights Act of 1991 to correct unlawful employment practices on the basis o(sex and 

retaliation, and to provide appropriate relief to Debra Smith, who was adversely affectcd by such 

practices during her employment with Airborne Express, Inc .• ("Airborne"). The CO~lInission 

alleges that Debra Smith was sUbjected to unwelcome sexual commcnts and conduct by employees 

of Defendants Airborne and Air One, which created a hostile work environment becausc of her sex. 



female. The Commission further alleges that Defendant Air One Transport ofJ\cw Mexico. L.L.C. 

("Air One"), as a third party and an cmployer suhject to Title VII. unlawfully interfered with \1s. 

Smith's employment hy creating a hostile ,,'ork cnvironmcnt, which adversely affected the tcrms. 

conditions and privilegcs of Smith's employment with her employer. Defendant Airborne. The 

Commission also alleges Defendant Airborne subjected Ms. Smith to retaliatory discipline and failed 

to promote her because she opposcd the unlawful employment 'practices of Defendants. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

I. Jurisdiction of this Court is invoked pursuant to 28 U.S.c. §§451. 1331. 1337. 1343 

and 1345. This action is authorized and instituted pursuant to Section 706(1)( I) and (3) oflitk VII 

ofthc Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended 42 U.S.c. §2000e-5 (1)(1) and(3) ("Title VII") and 

Section 102 of the Civil Rights Act of 1991. 42 U.s.c. §198Ia. 

2. The employment practices alleged to be unlawful were committed within the 

jurisdiction of the United States District Court for the District of New Mexico. 

PARTIES 

3. Plaintiff. the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (the "Commission"). is 

the agency of the United States of Amcrica charged with thc administration. interpretation and 

cnforccmcnt of Title VII. and is expressly authorized to bring this action by Scction 706(t)( I) and 

(3) ofTitle VII. 42 U.S.c. §2000c-5(t)(I) and (3). 

4. At all relevant times, Defendant Airborne has continuously bcen doing husiness in 

thc State ofNel\' Mexico. including thc City of Albuquerque, and has continuously had' at least 15 

employees. 
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5. At all relevant times. Defendant Airborne has continuously been and is now an 

employer engaged in an industry affecting commerce within the meaning of Section 70 I (b). (g) and 

(h) ofTitle VlI. 42 U.S.c. §2000e-(b). (g) and (h). 

6. At all relevant times, Defendant, DHL Express (USA), Inc .. a Delaware Corporation 

("DilL") has: 

a) continuously had at least 15 employees; 

b) continuously been and is now an employer engaged in an industry affecting 

commerce within the meaning of Section 701 (b). (g) and (h) of Title VII. 42 

U.S.c. §2000e-(b), (g) and (h); and 

c) merged its business operations with the operations of Defendant Airborne and 

is therefore. for purposes of this lawsuit a successor corporation who is or 

may be liahle in this action. 

7. At all relevant times, Defendant Air One has continuously been doing business in the 

State of New Mexico. including the City of Albuquerque, and has continuously had at least 15 

employees. 

8. At all relevant times, Defendant Air One has continuously heen and is now an 

employer engaged in an industry affecting commerce within the meaning of Section 70 I (b), (g) and 

(h) ofTitle VlI. 42 U.S.c. §2000e-(b). (g) and (h). 

STATDIENT OF CLAIMS 

9. More than thirty days prior to the institution ofthis lawsuit. Debra Smith filed charges 

with the Commission alleging violations of Title VlI by Defendants. All conditions precedent to the 
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institution of this lawsuit have been fulfilled. 

10. At all relevant times, and under a contractual agreement between both Defendants, 

Air One employees were assigned to work at the Defendant Airborne's Albul\uerl\ue facility, the 

facility where Smith worked. 

11. Since at least November 2001, Defendant Airborne has engaged in unlawful 

employment practices at its Albuquerque, New Mexico facility in violation of Section 703(a) of 

Title VII, 42 U.S.C. §§2000e-2(a) because of sex. These practices include: 

a) the harassment of Debra Smith because of her sex, female, which created a 

hosti Ie work environment; and 

b) the failure to take immediate and appropriate corrective action. 

12. As descrihed helow, since at least Novcmber 200 I, Defendant Air One has engaged 

in unlawful cmployment practices at Airhorne's Albuquerque, New Mexico facility in violation of 

Section 703(a) ofTitlc VII, 42 U.s.c. §§2000e-2(a) by creating a hostile work environment hecause 

of her sex, female, which interfered with Smith's employment opportunities and adversely affected 

the ternls, conditions and privileges of Smith's employment with Defendant Airhorne. These 

unlawful employment practices include: 

a.) interference with Debra Smith's employment opportunities with heremployer 

by SUbjecting her to offensive comments and conduct because of her sex, 

female; and 

b) interference with Debra Smith's emplO)111ent opportunities with her employer 

by Defendant Air One's failure to take immediate and appropriate correctivc 
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action. 

13. Since at least Novcmbcr 2002, Defendant Airborne has engaged in unlawful 

retaliatoryemploymcnt practices at its Albuqucrque, New Mexico facility in violation of Section 

704(a) of Title VII, 42 U.S.C. §§2000e-3(a). These retaliatory practices include: 

a) subjecting Debra Sqlith to disciplinary action and adverse terms, conditions 

and privi leges of employment after she expressed opposition to and made 

complaints about unlawful employment practices; and 

b) failing to promote Debra Smith on or about February 2003 because she 

opposed the unlawful employment practices to which she was subjected. 

14. The effect of the practices complained of in paragraphs 11 - 12 above has been to 

deprive Debra Smith of equal employment opportunities and otherwise adversely affect their status 

as employees because of her sex, female. 

15. The effect of the practices complained of in paragraph 13 above has been to deprive 

Debra Smith of equal employment opportunities find otherwisc adversely affcct hcr status as an 

elllploy.:e because of her opposition to unlawful employment practices. 

16. The unlawful empIO)111cnt practices complained of in paragraphs 11, 12 and 13 above 

were intentional. 

17. The unlawful emplO)l1lent practices complained of in paragraphs 11, 12 and 13 

above were done with malice and/or reckless indifTerence to thc federally protected rights of Debra 

Smith. PRAYER FOR R~:L1EF 

Wherefore, the Commission respectfully requests that this Court: 

A. Grant a penllanent injunction enjoining Defendants DHL, Airborne and Air One. 
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thcir officers, successors. assigns and all persons in active concert or participation with them. from 

engaging in harassment of employees because of sex and any other employment practice which 

discriminates on the basis of sex. 

B. Grant a pennanent injunction enjoining Defendants DHL and Airborne, their otlicers. 

successors, assigns and all persons in active concert or participation with it. from engaging in any 

employment practice which discriminates or retaliates against any individual because of the 

individual's opposition to perceived unlawful employment practices and/or because the individual 

filed a chargc, testified, assisted, or pal1icipated in an investigation or proceeding under Title VII. 

C. Ordcr Defendants DHL, Airborne and Air One to institute and carry out policies. 

practices and programs which provide equal employment opportunities for women and for those who 

oppose perceived unlawful.emplo}1nent practices and/or file charges, testi fy, assist or participate in 

an investigation orprocceding underTitlc VH, and which eradicate the effects of its past and present 

unlawful employmcnt practices. 

D. Order Defendants DHL and Airborne to make whole Dchra Smith hy providing 

appropriate hack pay with prejudgment interest. in amounts to be determined at trial, and other 

affirmative relief necessary to eradicate the effects of its unlawful employment practices, including 

but not limited to rightful place promotion of Debra Smith or front pay in lieu of rightful place 

promotion or placemelit. 

E. Order Defendants DHL, Airbome and.Air One to make whole Debra Smith by 

providing compensation for past and future pecuniary losses resulting from the unlawful employment 

practices described in paragraphs 11,12 and 13 above, in amounts to be detenilined at ·trial. 
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'. " . 

F. Order Dcfend~llts DI-IL, Airborn~ and Air One _to make whole Debra Smith by 

providing com~cnsaiiOl; for pilst and future non pccUI-iiarylos.scs resulting 1rolll the unla",fid 

practices conlpl'lincd of in pilragrllphs II, 12 an;f13-;lh~)ve, including hut not limited to, emotional 

pain, suffering, inconvenience, mcnml anguish, humili_~tion,loss of cnjo~11lcnt of Ii fe, and (lther non 

pecuniary losses; lriallloullts to be determined atiri(il. -

G. Order Defendants DII L, Airb~i-n~ and Air One to ray Debra Smith puniti\'e damages 

,.: . 

lor ils malicit'ms and,'o~ n:ckkss conduct uescrib~u in paragraphs II, 12 and 13 :tbo\'~, in mnounts 

to be determined at trial. . ~, . 

H. Grant su~h t-urther relief as the Court .Iee!i;' necessary anu proper in the public 

interest. 
~; . . '. 

I. Award the COlllmission its ('\jsts in this action. 

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 
- -, 

The Commission requests ;1 jury trial on ,111 qlJcstioilS()f fad raised by its Fir,t Amended 

Con,plainL 
- .. 

DATED this I st day of [)~cel1lber 2004 

: '. 

", ': _ ~~spcetft~ll}: submitted, 

ERIC S.DRElBAl\D 
----Gener'll Counsel 

'.' .. ." . ... . .. ,.,: 
; .'. 

- - , 

JA\1ESL LEE 
"DeptHy General COllllsel 

,G\VENDOLY:-J 'iOUNG REA1\1S ," 
,_ : Ass~i.:iale General COllnsd , 

EQl;A~ E\I!:'LOYMENT OI'PORT{)NI'ry 
, COMMISSION 
J 8ULL Street, l\W 

, .,\Vashington, D.C'. 20507 
-; 

~ .'.' , .. 
';. 
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" MARY JO O'''JEILL 
Regional "'\liorn~Y 
"'~ J 

'.C EMANUEL SMITH 
:".' ,Supervisory Trial' Att()rn~y 

: ". ' .. : .' 

"" EQUAL EMPLOYMEI'ZT OPPORTUI\"IT'r" 
, , " CO.\1MISSIO"J 

Phoenix District Office 
'3300 I'Z:Ccl;tral Ave. 
: Suite 690 

Phoeilix; Arizona 85012 
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" LORETTA MEDII'ZA 

'Sci~ior 'l'1ial Attomcy 
: .. 

• ' ,VERO\lICA A, MOLINA 
. '_TiialAttorncv 
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